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Dear Ministers,

Re: Recent letters sent to Canadians with the subject: “Your eligibility for the Canada Emergency
Response Benefit (CERB)” and the definition of self-employment income

Together our associations represent over seventy-five thousand professional artists and arts workers
across Canada. The COVID-19 pandemic has been devastating to our members’ income, and as the
pandemic reaches into its 10" month, the financial, social, physical and mental wellbeing of our
members is of great concern.

We are appreciative of the Federal Government’s leadership in supporting self-employed persons
through the pandemic by implementing the Canada Emergency Response Benefit (the “CERB”) and the
Canada Recovery Benefit (the “CRB”). These benefits have been, and continue to be, a lifeline for many
of our members. We are writing today because hundreds of our members have received a letter from
the Canada Revenue Agency (the “CRA”) stating the CRA cannot confirm the member’s eligibility for
CERB amounts already received (the “Eligibility Letter”). As a whole, the Eligibility Letter is most easily
understood as a request to repay all amounts received under the CERB.

Above all, we ask that a public statement is released by the government on or prior to December 18,
2020 that the policies expressed in the Eligibility Letter are under review and a reminder that there
are no penalties or interest owing for those who do not pay back amounts by December 31, 2020,
regardless of the final determination of eligibility.

In terms of assessment criteria and assessment method there is new information in the Eligibility Letter
that by our records did not appear in:

the Canada Emergency Response Benefit Act (the “Act”);
any regulations related to the Act;
the published “Questions and Answers” website that was the key source of eligibility
information prior to applying for the CERB; or
e the original application process for the CERB.



The new information is as follows:

1. The Eligibility Letter, for the purposes of determining whether an applicant earned $5,000 in
2019, indicates that this threshold must have been achieved net of related expenses instead of
using gross self-employment income.

2. While the application for the CERB did indicate that CRA would use tax information to assess
eligibility, it never indicated which specific tax information it would use. The Eligibility Letter
seems to indicate that the 2019 tax return is being used to assess eligibility but does not state
which line or lines from the tax return are being used to determine that the applicant did not
have $5,000 in self-employment income in 2019. Even if an applicant had not yet filed their
2019 return when applying for the CERB, this information would have helped the applicant
understand eligibility at a much earlier point in the process.

Further, the Eligibility Letter has been sent in advance of the deadline for 2020 tax returns and as a
result the CRA, in most cases, would not be able to determine self-employment income in 2020 solely
from tax records. Our understanding is that self-employment income in 2020 may be used in
combination with 2019 amounts to determine eligibility by using the alternative timeline of 12 months
prior to application, in order to achieve the threshold of $5,000 in self-employment income. Therefore,
members who have determined they are eligible using this method may now mistakenly deem
themselves ineligible. While the Eligibility Letter states the option to “disregard this letter” if one
determines they meet the criteria, it is difficult for our members to feel comfortable disregarding any
letter from the CRA calling into question their eligibility for a program from which they received
upwards of $14,000.

We are asking you, on behalf of our members, to work with the CRA to consider the following steps to
remedy the situation caused by the Eligibility Letter.

A. That the CRA revise its interpretation and allow gross self-employment income as reported on
any or all of lines 13499, 13699, 13899, 14099, and 14299 on the 2019 tax return to stand as the
test for eligibility when determining whether an applicant had $5,000 in self-employment
income in 2019.

B. That the CRA provide a follow-up letter to all who received the Eligibility Letter notifying
applicants of the revised interpretation.

C. That even in cases where the applicant is not deemed eligible by the revised interpretation that
the CRA clearly explain how an applicant may provide proof of $5,000 in gross self-employment
income in the 12 months prior to application in place of the 2019 tax return.

We understand that the steps above may take time to consider. To provide our members and other
affected Canadians some peace of mind during this holiday season we repeat the ask that a public
statement is released by the government on or prior to December 18, 2020 that the policies expressed
in the Eligibility Letter are under review and a reminder that there are no penalties or interest owing
for those who do not pay back amounts by December 31, 2020, regardless of the final determination
of eligibility.



Many artists and arts workers average their income from one year to the next, and the good years offset
the bad ones. While some aspects of the culture sector are slowly recovering, there are still significantly
fewer opportunities available to artists and arts workers at this time, making it even more challenging
for people to pay back money for which they thought they were eligible. We believe it is unacceptable
to penalize applicants for this ambiguity, especially given the precarious position many people find
themselves in due to ongoing closures and loss of work opportunities.

We hope we can count on the Government of Canada to continue to be there for cultural workers by
making this adjustment, which will no doubt have a positive impact on the livelihoods of the thousands
of workers who belong to Canada’s creative community.
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Marie Kelly, National Executive Director, ACTRA (mkelly@actra.ca)

John M. Lewis, International VP & Director of Canadian Affairs, IATSE
(jlewis@iatse.net)

Alan Willaert, AFM Vice-President from Canada, Canadian Federation of
Musicians (awillaert@afm.org)

Arden R. Ryshpan, Executive Director, Canadian Actors' Equity Association
(arden@caea.com)

April Britski, National Executive Director, CARFAC (director@carfac.ca)

Maegen Black, Director, Canadian Crafts Federation
(maegen@canadiancraftsfederation.ca)

Maureen Parker, Executive Director, Writers Guild of Canada
(t.stewart@wgc.ca)



() coplc Sasha Sobrino, General Manager, CAPIC National (info@capic.org)

COAIAC) Aviva Fleising, Interim Managing Director, Canadian Dance Assembly

Canadian Dance Assembly (aviva@dancecanada.net)
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THE John Degen, Executive Director, The Writers’ Union of Canada
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UNION OF (jdegen@writersunion.ca)
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cc
The Honourable Patricia Bovey, Senator (Patricia.Bovey@sen.parl.gc.ca)

Julie Dabrusin, Member of Parliament for Toronto-Danforth, Parliamentary Secretary to the Minister of Canadian
Heritage (Julie.dabrusin@parl.gc.ca)

Rebecca Caldwell, Director of Policy, Canadian Heritage (rebecca.caldwell@canada.ca)

Fred Lagrandeur, Senior Policy Advisor, Canadian Heritage (fred.lagrandeur@canada.ca)

Irene Cheung, Policy Advisor, Office of the Minister of Canadian Heritage (Irene.Cheung@canada.ca)

Leslie Church, Director of Policy, Office of the Minister of Finance (Leslie.Church@canada.ca)

Michael Ingoldsby, Policy Advisor, Office of the Minister of Finance (Michael.ingoldsby@dpmo-cvpm.gc.ca)

Maude Lavoie, Director General, Business Income Tax, Office of the Minister of Finance
(Maude.Lavoie@canada.ca)

Bernard Boutin, Chief of Staff, Office of the Minister of National Revenue (Bernard.boutin@canada.ca)

Faizel Gulamhussein, Director of Policy, Office of the Minister of National Revenue
(Faizel.Gulamhussein@canada.ca)

Matthew Gray, Policy Advisor, Office of the Minister of National Revenue (Matthew.Gray@cra-arc.gc.ca)

Jill Pilgrim and Kelly Bryant, Office of the Minister of Employment, Workforce Development and Disability Inclusion
(Jill.Pilgrim@hrsdc-rhdcc.ca)(Kelly.Bryant@hrsdc-rhdcc.ca)

Dominic Cormier, Senior Policy Advisor, Prime Minister’s Office (Dominic.Cormier@pmo-cpm.gc.ca)

Ben Chin, Senior Advisor, Prime Minister’s Office (Ben.Chin@canada.ca)



